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Architecture & Building Engineering    Civil Engineering    Energy Services    Environmental Services   Survey & Land Services 

February 10, 2015 
 
Ms. Deborah LaBreche, P.E., Assistant City Engineer  
City of Saratoga Springs 
City Hall, 474 Broadway 
Saratoga Springs, New York  12866 
 
RE: Proposal  

2015 Post-Closure Monitoring Services and 
 Air Facility Registration Application (Minor Facility Registration) 

Weibel Avenue Landfill 
 
Dear Ms. LaBreche: 
 
C.T. Male Associates Engineering, Surveying, Architecture & Landscape Architecture, 
P.C. (C.T. Male) is pleased to submit this proposal for 2015 post-closure landfill 
monitoring services, and for preparation of a NYSDEC Air Facility Registration 
application (Minor Facility Registration) for the new landfill gas flare to be installed and 
the existing atmospheric vent at the City of Saratoga Springs Weibel Avenue Landfill 
located in the City of Saratoga Springs, Saratoga County, New York.   
 
In 2009 pursuant to the request prepared by C.T. Male, the NYSDEC approved a 
reduction in groundwater and surface water monitoring at the landfill from quarterly to 
semi-annually.  The NYSDEC also approved analysis of the groundwater and surface 
water samples for the 6NYCRR Part 360 routine parameters, except that during the fall 
sampling event the groundwater samples are to be analyzed for the 6NYCRR Part 360 
baseline parameters.  Pursuant to NYSDEC’s August 5, 2011 letter responding to the 
request for a reduction in the explosive gas monitoring, the NYSDEC approved a 
reduction in the explosive gas monitoring from quarterly to semi-annual.  In summary, 
the landfill monitoring services are to include semi-annual surface water and 
groundwater sampling and analyses, semi-annual explosive gas monitoring, and 
annual report preparation.   
 
The City has requested that C.T. Male prepare the NYSDEC Air Facility Registration 
application (Minor Facility Registration) for the new landfill gas flare to be installed and 
the existing atmospheric.  The NYSDEC is requiring that air emission calculations be 
performed to determine if the emissions will be less than 50% of the EPA Title V 
thresholds in order to qualify for Cap by Rule and be eligible for an Air Facility 
Registration (Minor Facility Registration).  If the emissions will not be less than 50% of 
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the EPA Title V thresholds then capping out under a State Facility Permit would be 
necessary.  Our proposal assumes that a State Facility Permit will not be necessary. 
 
In view of the above, C.T. Male’s proposed Scope of Work and Fee Proposal are 
presented as follows: 
 
SCOPE OF WORK 
 
Item 1 – Semi-Annual Groundwater and Surface Water Monitoring 
 
1. Conduct semi-annual groundwater monitoring of five (5) monitoring wells and 

semi-annual surface water monitoring of three (3) surface water samples at the 
Weibel Avenue Landfill during 2015.  It is assumed that the monitoring wells are 
accessible and in good condition for sampling.  Analyze the five (5) groundwater 
samples and one (1) field duplicate in the laboratory for the 6 NYCRR Part 360 
routine parameters during the spring (May) semi-annual sampling event and for the 
6 NYCRR Part 360 baseline parameters during the fall (November) semi-annual 
sampling event.  It is our understanding that the list of routine and baseline 
parameters are those in the Water Quality Analysis Table of the 6NYCRR Part 360 
regulations effective December 31, 1988 and revised May 28, 1991.  A trip blank will 
be analyzed during the baseline sampling event for volatile organic compounds.  As 
required by NYSDEC, samples collected that have a field turbidity of >50 NTUs will 
be analyzed for filtered and unfiltered metals.  If filtered metals analysis is required, 
there will be an additional cost of $32/sample for routine filtered metals and 
$136/sample for baseline filtered metals.  Based on past monitoring experience over 
the last several years, we have included the analysis of two filtered metal samples 
per sampling event in our fee. 

 
2. C.T. Male will subcontract the laboratory analyses to a NYSDOH ELAP certified 

laboratory.  A laboratory analysis report will be prepared for each sampling event.   
 
3. Prepare annual report for 2015 on the environmental monitoring.  The report will 

include tabulated results, a discussion of the results and any observed trends, and an 
assessment of the landfill's impact to the local environment.  A copy of the semi-
annual groundwater and surface water monitoring laboratory analysis reports will 
be included with the annual report.  A draft copy of the annual report will be 
submitted to the City Engineering and Public Works Departments for review.  We 
will address any comments and then upon approval we will submit the final report 
to the NYSDEC, the NYSDOH, and the City Engineering and Public Works 
Departments. 
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Item 2 – Semi-Annual Explosive Gas Monitoring 
 
Conduct semi-annual explosive gas monitoring at the landfill in 2015.  Explosive gas 
monitoring will be performed at the existing monitoring wells, in the existing buildings 
at the landfill and at temporary points around the perimeter of the landfill using a MSA 
explosimeter or equal instrument.  The perimeter explosive gas monitoring will be 
conducted using temporary soil-gas methodology at points located approximately 
every 100 to 500 feet around the perimeter of the facility as shown on the existing 
Explosive Gas Monitoring Locations Sketch Map.  The results will be reported semi-
annually to the NYSDEC, and the City Engineering and Public Works Departments. 
 
Additional reporting to the NYSDEC was required in 2014 to convey actions taken by 
the City to address the elevated explosive gases in the north/northeast corner of the 
site, and the City has requested periodic assistance in other matters dealing with the 
landfill.  We have included hourly rates and a budget estimate for a staff geologist, who 
performs the explosive gas monitoring, and a managing environmental engineer within 
our Fee Proposal for additional explosive gas monitoring and engineering assistance on 
an as needed basis, should it be necessary in 2015. 
 
Item 3 – NYSDEC Air Facility Registration Application (Minor Facility Registration) 
 
1. Obtain from Wehran Energy Corporation the size (CFM) of the two new blowers, 

the size/input rating of the flare, and any existing test data, if available, on the gas 
coming out of the landfill for carbon monoxide, methane, non-methane VOCs 
and/or hydrogen sulfide.  This information will be utilized to perform the air 
emission calculations. 

 
2. Perform air emission calculations including calculate the actual hourly and annual 

emissions, emission rate potential (ERP) and potential to emit (PTE) for the landfill 
gas (methane, non-methane VOCs, carbon monoxide and hydrogen sulfide) emitted 
to the atmospheric vent, and for combustion products (sulfur dioxide, oxides of 
nitrogen, carbon monoxide, particulates, VOCs and HAPs) emitted from the flare to 
be installed.   

 
3. Prepare a letter report that includes general facility information; description of the 

process, emission sources and emission points; summary of air emission 
calculations; applicable regulatory requirements; record keeping requirements/ 
procedures; and application form. 
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4. Submit a draft of the letter report and application form to the City for review, 
address comments, and submit the final letter report and Air Facility Registration 
application form signed by the City to the NYSDEC with a copy to the City. 

 
FEE PROPOSAL 
 
C.T. Male’s Fee Proposal for the above described Scope of Work is as follows: 
 
Items 1 and 2 – Semi-Annual Groundwater and Surface Water Monitoring and Semi-
Annual Explosive Gas Monitoring  
 
1. Sample Monitoring Well Locations, Laboratory Analysis for  

Routine Parameters, and Reporting:    
5 Samples/event @ $348.75/sample x 1 Event/year =   $  1,743.75 

 
2. Sample Field Duplicate During Groundwater Sampling and  

Laboratory Analysis for Routine Parameters, and Reporting: 
1 Sample/event @ $348.75/sample x 1 Event/year =   $     348.75 

 
3. Sample Surface Water Sampling Locations, Laboratory 

Analysis for Routine Parameters, and Reporting:  
3 Samples/event @ $348.75/sample x 2 Events/year =   $  2,092.50 

 
4. Filtered Metals Analysis for Routine Metals: 
 2 Samples/event @ $32/sample x 1 Event/year =    $       64.00 
 
5. Sample Monitoring Well Locations, Laboratory Analysis for  

Baseline Parameters, and Reporting:  
5 Samples/event @ $566.75/sample x 1 Event/year =   $  2,833.75 

 
6. Sample Field Duplicate During Groundwater Sampling and  

Laboratory Analysis for Baseline Parameters, and Reporting: 
1 Sample/event @ $398.00/sample x 1 Event/year =   $     398.00 

 
7. Filtered Metals Analysis for Baseline Metals: 
 2 Samples/event @ $136/sample x 1 Event/ year =   $     272.00 
 
8. Semi-Annual Explosive Gas Monitoring and Reports:   

2 Monitoring Events/year @ $732.50/event =    $  1,465.00 
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9. Additional Explosive Gas Monitoring and Engineering 
Assistance, as Needed (Estimated Hours) 
Managing Environmental Engineer:  8 hrs @ $170/hr =   $  1,360.00 
Staff Geologist:  8 hrs @ $85/hr =      $     680.00 

Subtotal Items 1 and 2      $11,257.75 
 
Item 3 – NYSDEC Air Facility Registration Application (Minor Facility Registration) 
 
1. Air Facility Registration Application, Calculations and Letter Report 

Managing Environmental Engineer:  4 hrs @ $170/hr =   $     680.00 
Environmental Engineer:  24 hrs @ $125/hr =    $  3,000.00 

Subtotal Item 3         $  3,680.00 
 
Total Items 1, 2 and 3        $14,937.75 
 
If the above is acceptable, please contact me regarding contractual arrangements.  
Current certificates of insurance for professional and general liability have been ordered 
and will be submitted upon receipt. 
 
C.T. Male appreciates the opportunity to submit this proposal and we look forward to 
continue working with you and the City of Saratoga Springs on this project.  We are 
available to meet with you at your convenience to review our proposal and answer any 
questions that you may have.  If you have any questions, please call me at (518)786-
7492.  Thank you. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
C.T. MALE ASSOCIATES 
 

 
 
Elizabeth W. Rovers, P.E. 
Managing Engineer 
 
 
c: Tim Wales, P.E., City Engineer 

Anthony (Skip) Scirocco, Commissioner of Public Works 






